
  APPROVED 

 
TP&ZC Special Meeting 
September 27, 2016 
Page 1 of 3 
 

MINUTES 
SPECIAL MEETING 

TOWN PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
SEPTEMBER 27, 2016    5:00 PM 

 COUNCIL CHAMBERS, TOWN HALL 
275 BROAD STREET, WINDSOR, CONNECTICUT 

 

Present: Commissioners Mips, Profe, Scharoff, Smith, and Alternate Commissioner Correia 
  
Also Present: Town Planner Barz and Assistant Town Planner Kenyon 
 
Commissioner Mips opened the meeting at 5:00 p.m. 
 
Commissioner Profe read the legal notice into the record. 
 
I.    PUBLIC HEARINGS 
  

1. Re-Subdivision—70 White Rock Drive, 1 lot, R-13 Zone, Melhem/Suleiman (continued 
from September 13, 2016 meeting) 
 

2. Special Use—70 White Rock Drive, Flag Lot, Zoning Regulations Section 4.5.14, R-13 
Zone, Melhem 

 

Town Planner Barz provided a summary of the process to date. He said a special use application 
was submitted and scheduled for public hearing tonight so that it could be heard along with the 
application for re-subdivision, which was continued from the September 13th meeting. Town 
Planner Barz said the applicant has been working with his Engineer to address staff comments. 
 
It was noted that Commissioner Correia was seated at 5:03 p.m. 
 
Town Planner Barz said if the Commission approves the applications tonight, Council action 
would be required to release the right to construct the future road connecting White Rock to 
Dally Farm. He went on to provide a summary of the applications. He said Becker Farms was 
originally approved as a five-lot subdivision. The applicant later submitted a re-subdivision 
showing two lots instead of the initially proposed five lots. As part of the subdivision, access 
from White Rock Drive to Dally Farm Road was to be provided through access reserve parcels, 
which the Town could construct a road on in the future if it was decided a connection was 
necessary. At that time, sewer and laterals were shown from White Rock Drive to the two lots. 
When the re-subdivision expired, the applicant came back in for re-subdivision approval. A 
different engineer, Lally and Associates, was hired to prepare the plans. The MDC would not 
allow laterals to be placed under what could potentially become a town road in the future. 
Therefore the plans were approved showing water mains and sewer serving the lots, instead of 



  APPROVED 

 
TP&ZC Special Meeting 
September 27, 2016 
Page 2 of 3 
 

laterals. The property owner was at an impasse—the Town would not release the right to the 
future town road and the MDC would not allow laterals. As a result, 70 White Rock Drive went 
into foreclosure. The new property owner of 70 White Rock Drive has now approached staff to 
remove the water mains and sewer and install laterals.  
 
Town Planner Barz explained the changes are only to 70 White Rock Drive; there are no 
changes to 68 White Rock. The applicant has tried through his Engineer to make his property 
self-sufficient with the drainage of the property contained on-site. Town Planner Barz said the 
landscaping will be the same as what was previously approved, the driveway has been 
approved by the Fire Marshal, and the standard complies with the flag lot regulations. The 
owner of 68 White Rock is not a party to the application, so he still enjoys the right to place a 
driveway in the center of the properties. 
 
Nathaniel Mack, 68 White Rock Drive, said he used to own 70 White Rock Drive. He said he 
approached the Town to put in a two inch water line and was told he could not do it. That was 
the main reason he lost the property. He said he wanted to bring that to the Commission’s 
attention because it seems like it is a double standard. 
 
Anthony Craft, 69 White Rock Drive, asked about construction. He said his driveway is directly 
across from 70 White Rock Drive and he is concerned access will be blocked by construction. He 
wanted to know what the procedure is to make sure there is access. 
 
Town Planner Barz said it is a common occurrence and the applicant will get permits for 
construction work. At that time, instructions will be provided for maintaining access to the 
street. Town Planner Barz also said dirt and dust on the street will be monitored and cleaned 
accordingly. 
 
Mr. Craft said he had one other concern regarding the parking of construction equipment on his 
lawn. He said that whenever there is construction, because there is no curb, equipment is 
parked there and it tears up his lawn. Mr. Craft noted that his property was the only area 
without curbing. 
 
Town Planner Barz responded that there may be a reason for the lack of curb in that area but 
he would let Engineering know. 
 
Commissioner Profe asked for clarification on the location of the driveways. Town Planner Barz 
said each lot has 25 feet where a driveway could be located. However, because 68 White Rock 
Drive is not a party to the application, approval of the applications would not extinguish the 
right of 68 White Rock to locate a driveway in the middle of the properties. Town Planner Barz 
noted that if the Commission is inclined to approve the applications, he recommends approval 



  APPROVED 

 
TP&ZC Special Meeting 
September 27, 2016 
Page 3 of 3 
 

subject to final staff review of plans, release of agreement for the future town road, and all 
previous conditions of approval. 
 
Mr. Madina asked if the parcels had already been released. Town Planner Barz said the Town 
Attorney located the agreement showing the Town Council signed an agreement regarding the 
access reserve parcels. 
 
Commissioner Mips closed the public hearing for this item.  
 
Motion: Commissioner Profe move approval of the Special Use, 70 White Rock Drive, Flag Lot, 
Zoning Regulations Section 4.5.14, R-13 Zone, Melhem applicant, subject to final staff review; 
release of agreement of future town road to be built; and all conditions of previous approval. 
Commissioner Scharoff seconded the motion and it passed unanimously, 5-0-0. 
 
Motion: Commissioner Profe moved approval of the re-subdivision, 70 White Rock Drive, 1 
lot, R-13 Zone, Melhem and Suleiman applicants, continued from the September 13th meeting 
subject to the same conditions as the special use. Commissioner Scharoff seconded the 
motion and it passed unanimously, 5-0-0. 
 
II. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion: Commissioner Profe moved to adjourn the meeting at 5:18 p.m. Commissioner 
Scharoff seconded the motion and it passed unanimously, 5-0-0.  
 
 
 
 

 
Respectfully submitted,     , Abigail Kenyon, Recording Secretary 
 

 
 

 
I certify these minutes were adopted on October 11, 2016      
                               Karl Robert Profe, Secretary 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 


